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          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Good

          3  afternoon, everybody, and welcome to the

          4  Subcommittee of Planning, Dispositions and

          5  Concessions. This is the Subcommittee of the Land

          6  Use Committee of the New York City Council.

          7                 Today's date is Monday, November

          8  26th. I am joined by Council Member Maria Baez,

          9  Council Member Inez Dickens. My name is Dan

         10  Garodnick. I'm the Chair of this Committee.

         11                 We have several items on the agenda

         12  for today. We're going to start right off the bat

         13  and invite HPD up to the witness table. We're going

         14  to start with Land Use No. 614, a Third-Party

         15  Transfer in rem No. 49. This is Bronx Community

         16  Board 6 and 12, 20085073 HAX, in the districts of

         17  Council Member Seabrook and Rivera, and Ms. Clark, I

         18  would like you to introduce Land Use No. 614, but

         19  before you do I just want to note that we are also

         20  joined by Council Member Vince Ignizio, Staten

         21  Island.

         22                 So, Ms. Clark, you go right ahead.

         23                 MS. CLARK: Thank you, Chairman

         24  Garodnick. I'm Carol Clark. I'm Assistant

         25  Commissioner at HPD, and I am here to testify on
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          2  Land Use Item 614 and 15, which consists of the

          3  disposition of eight properties located in the Bronx

          4  through HPD's Third-Party Transfer Program, Round 7.

          5                 By law, Third-Party Transfer

          6  properties are deemed approved after 45 days, unless

          7  disapproved by local law, which did not occur in

          8  this instance.

          9                 Council Members Rivera, Seabrook,

         10  Foster, Palma and Koppell, have expressed their

         11  support of the Bronx transfers in Round 7 of the

         12  Third-Party Transfer Program.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Can you tell

         15  us a little bit more about the Third-Party

         16  Transfers, please?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Sure.

         18                 We transfer the properties to the

         19  Restored Homes Housing Development Fund Corporation,

         20  which is an interim holder of the properties. It's a

         21  not-for-profit that's partnered with HPD for years

         22  on rehabilitating these properties, and then they

         23  will be conveyed to other owners, after this interim

         24  period is over.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And there is
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          2  rehabilitation during the process? Is that what you

          3  said by Restored Homes?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That is

          5  correct. They undertake the stabilization of the

          6  properties and then in the instance of some of them,

          7  they're being transferred, the Mapes Avenue

          8  (phonetic) property, the Barker Avenue property, the

          9  East 231st Street property, and the East 223rd

         10  Street property, those are in the districts of

         11  Council Member Seabrook and Council Member Rivera.

         12  They will be transferred after the interim period to

         13  an entity known as "RSE Management, LLC."

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, just to

         15  be absolutely clear about this --

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Sure.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: You introduced

         18  two Land Use items, right? 614 and 615 at the same

         19  time?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

         21  sir.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay.

         23                 And you just noted that the

         24  properties that were in the districts of Seabrook

         25  and Rivera will be ultimately transferred to an
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          2  entity named as RSE you said?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: RSE

          4  Management, LLC.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: RSE, right.

          6                 Now, for the Land Use No. 615, which

          7  is a Third-Party Transfer, and as I understand it,

          8  that's in the districts of Council Members Koppell,

          9  Rivera, Foster and Palma?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. Now,

         12  those go from restored homes to whom?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: In the

         14  instance of Council Member Foster, it will be a New

         15  Foundations developer to be determined at a later

         16  point in time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. How

         18  about the others?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: And

         20  Council Member Koppell's property is another one,

         21  the Barker Avenue property, which is in Councilmanic

         22  District 11, and that is to be conveyed after

         23  Restored Homes to RSE Management, which is the

         24  entity we spoke of earlier.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And Rivera and
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          2  Palma?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: One of

          4  the properties in Council Member Rivera's district,

          5  the Hughes Avenue property at 2110 Hughes Avenue,

          6  will be conveyed to a New Foundations developer to

          7  be determined later. And the other, 2126 Mapes

          8  Avenue, will be conveyed after the interim holding

          9  period by Neighborhood Restore to RSE Management,

         10  LLC.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         12                 And the selection for these entities,

         13  the RSE, what is the process for that?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: They

         15  qualify. They have to put in their qualifications

         16  and are evaluated on the merits. The RSE Management

         17  is a well-established experienced developer that has

         18  successfully completed over 150 units through a

         19  variety of HPD programs, including Third-Party

         20  Transfer and the Neighborhood Entrepreneurs Program.

         21  They've got over 19 years of experience in the

         22  rehabilitation of distressed properties, and they

         23  qualified and were selected to participate in the

         24  Third-Party Transfer --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Was that a
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          2  competitive process?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

          4  sir. It's a competitive process.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And they have

          6  the qualifications and were selected among others?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

          8  correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Are there

         10  other questions?

         11                 Seeing none, we will close the

         12  hearing.

         13                 You indicated that all of the Council

         14  members in whose districts these properties sit were

         15  supportive of these transfers; is that correct?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

         17  sir. We met individually with each and every one of

         18  the Council members and obtained their approval.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And we will

         20  then close the hearing on Land Use nos 614 and 615.

         21  They are respectively 20085073 HAX and 20085074 HAX.

         22                 And we will now open the hearing --

         23  is it easier for us to do 620 and 621 together, or

         24  should we do those separately, Ms. Clark?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: We can
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          2  do them together.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That

          5  would be fine.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: So, why don't

          7  we open the hearing on Land Use 620. This is the

          8  Albany Crossing Apartments, LP. 20085182 HAK, and

          9  Land Use No. 621, the Kingston Heights Apartments,

         10  LP, 20085183 HAK. Both in the district of Council

         11  Member Al Vann, and I'd like to welcome Joe Lynch of

         12  Nixon Peabody, who I understand will be joining you

         13  in this application. But before I go on, I want to

         14  note that we've been joined by Sara Gonzalez from

         15  Brooklyn, a member of this Committee. Welcome.

         16                 Ms. Clark.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

         18  thank you, Chairman Garodnick. And I am joined, as

         19  you can see, by Joseph Lynch, Nixon Peabody. LU 620

         20  is known as the Albany Crossings Apartments. It's an

         21  Article 5 redevelopment company located in Brooklyn

         22  in the district of Al Vann.

         23                 The project is located at number 1

         24  through 20 Albany Avenue, and it was substantially

         25  rehabilitated in the early 1980s.
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          2                 The sponsor, Bedford Stuyvesant

          3  Restoration Corporation, plans to acquire and

          4  rehabilitate the development to provide 91 units of

          5  rental housing for low-income individuals, plus one

          6  superintendent. Mr. Lynch represents the sponsor and

          7  will testify to provide additional information about

          8  LU 620.

          9                 Should we proceed with that? Council

         10  Member Vann has been briefed and has indicated his

         11  enthusiastic support of the project.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Mr. Lynch, you

         13  can go right ahead.

         14                 MR. LYNCH: Thank you.

         15                 These are existing Section 8

         16  properties, and if I talk a little bit too

         17  technical, I mean just please let me know. I can

         18  explain them more.

         19                 These are existing Section 8

         20  properties whose Section 8 contracts have expired,

         21  and under federal regulations when a Section 8

         22  contract expires, you have to have a market study

         23  done on the properties. A study was done about two

         24  to three years ago and the rents must be adjusted

         25  down for these properties.
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          2                 HUD has a process called a

          3  mark-to-market transaction, and much of this

          4  explanation, by the way, carries through for the

          5  next transaction. I'll be glad to repeat it, but it

          6  is almost identical.

          7                 What the owner decided to do was have

          8  what you call as an additional fund transaction,

          9  where the properties will go through a

         10  mark-to-market process with HUD. We will have new

         11  20-year contracts with the automatic right to -- not

         12  the automatic right, actually, we must extend for an

         13  additional ten years after those 20 years upon

         14  closing. These buildings will also be subject to a

         15  use agreement which will restrict the owners and

         16  will provide affordability for a remaining 30 years

         17  after closing.

         18                 The good thing about both these

         19  transactions is that they are being additionally

         20  funded through New York City Housing Development

         21  Corporation through tax exempt bonds and will

         22  receive low-income tax credits as well, which will

         23  not affect the residents' rents, but will allow

         24  rehab. In Albany Decatur, it will allow

         25  rehabilitation of an additional $7.8 million or
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          2  84,783 per unit. These are very good deals for all

          3  around. There will be no displacement of any

          4  residents in either of these transactions, as well,

          5  and it is a good way to keep the affordability in

          6  putting in capital improvements.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you for

          8  that.

          9                 So, just, if you don't mind, why

         10  don't we introduce Land Use 621, since it sounds

         11  like the explanation that you just gave would apply

         12  for both, and then we will see if there are other

         13  questions here.

         14                 So, Ms. Clark, why don't you go ahead

         15  and introduce that one.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Sure.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Kingston

         18  Heights.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes, LU

         20  621, known as "Kingston Heights Apartments," is also

         21  an Article 5 redevelopment company development in

         22  Brooklyn in the District of Al Vann, who has been

         23  briefed and has expressed his enthusiastic support

         24  for this item, LU 621.

         25                 The project consists of multiple
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          2  buildings located at Kingston Avenue, Decatur Street

          3  and McDonough Street, similarly they were

          4  substantially rehabilitated about 20 years ago, and

          5  the sponsor of Bedford Stuyvesant Restoration

          6  Corporation plans to proceed with further

          7  acquisition and rehabilitation at this time and they

          8  are represented by Mr. Lynch of Nixon Peabody, who

          9  can elaborate on this.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Unless there

         11  is anything additional about this one, Mr. Lynch --

         12                 MR. LYNCH: The only real difference,

         13  sir, is that it's $8.8 million in rehab or 66,677 in

         14  rehab, so it's even a little bit more.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: As opposed to

         16  the 7.8 million that you mentioned for --

         17                 MR. LYNCH: For Albany, yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: For Land Use

         19  620.

         20                 MR. LYNCH: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Can you say a

         22  little more about the process whereby you have the

         23  mark-to-market with HUD?

         24                 MR. LYNCH: Sure. This is a statutory

         25  requirement that HUD put out for all Section 8
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          2  buildings who have an expiring Section 8 contract.

          3  Many times what happens on a Section 8 property is

          4  that the rents will be usually marked down or kept

          5  where they are upon the expiration of a Section 8

          6  contract and then they'll get a 20-year contract

          7  with a 30-year use agreement. This helps many

          8  buildings but these buildings were in dire need of

          9  rehabilitation.

         10                 So, with the low income housing tax

         11  credits, and the tax exempt bonds which are allowed

         12  to come into the property as well, it's really a win

         13  because you really have extensive capital

         14  improvements, so you're not looking at further

         15  subsidy increases five years from now because you're

         16  really frontloading many of your rehab, so it works.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         18                 And the affordability stays in place

         19  for 30 years; is that right?

         20                 MR. LYNCH: We have a Section 8

         21  contract which goes for 20 years from closing and we

         22  must renew it for at least ten years, and we also

         23  have a 30-year use agreement, which HUD requires to

         24  be signed processed with the mark-to-market, which

         25  restricts the owner from taking anybody other than
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          2  low-income, low-income families.

          3                 Also, too, there is a bond regulatory

          4  agreement, and there will be a regulatory agreement

          5  with HPD. So, it's really wrapped with a lot of

          6  regulatory agreements --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And the Land

          8  Use 620 applied to the rehabilitation of 91 units,

          9  as I understand it?

         10                 MR. LYNCH: Albany Decatur is, I have

         11  91 plus 1, I believe, and on NSA it's 132. I think

         12  it's 132 plus 2.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

         14  correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: I'm sorry,

         16  that's for the second item, for Land Use 621, it's

         17  132 plus 2?

         18                 MR. LYNCH: Yes, 132 plus 2. And it's

         19  in seven four-story buildings.

         20                 And the Albany Decatur is 92 plus 1,

         21  in seven three- to six-story buildings.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, thank

         23  you.

         24                 Seeing no other members of the public

         25  wishing to testify on this item, we will close the
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          2  hearing on Land Use No. 620, which is 20085182 HAK,

          3  and Land Use No. 621, which is 20085183 HAK, and we

          4  will open the hearing, let's do the last two

          5  together as well, Land Use No. 566, non-ULURP

          6  20085086 HAM, at 154 East 97th Street, Manhattan,

          7  and Land Use No. 567, non-ULURP 20085087 HAM, at 156

          8  East 97th Street in Manhattan. It looks like they're

          9  adjoining properties there, both in the district of

         10  Council Member Melissa Mark-Viverito.

         11                 Ms. Clark.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes.

         13  And I'm joined by Terry Arroyo, HPD's Land Use

         14  Director.

         15                 LU 566 consists of the proposed

         16  disposition of one City-owned building located at

         17  156 East 97th Street through HPD's Tenant Interim

         18  Lease Program, known as TIL.

         19                 TIL assists organized tenants

         20  associations in City-owned buildings to purchase and

         21  manage low-income cooperatives. This project

         22  consists of 18 units and Council Member

         23  Mark-Viverito has been briefed and indicated her

         24  approval.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Sorry. You
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          2  said Land Use 566 was at 154?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: No, 156

          4  East 97th Street.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, we have

          6  that in our -- let's just take one second here.

          7                 Okay, there is just a slight

          8  discrepancy between which item is 154 and 156 East

          9  97th Street. But we will, you know, we're going to

         10  take them together here for the purposes of voting.

         11  We will vote on them by address so that there is no

         12  confusion at all.

         13                 If you could just introduce Land Use,

         14  what we were previously calling Land Use 567, but is

         15  154 East 97th Street, if you could introduce that

         16  item now, we would appreciate it.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: No

         18  problem. That item consists of the proposed

         19  disposition of one City-owned building which as you

         20  said is located at 154 East 97th Street, also

         21  through HPD's Tenant Interim Lease Program, known as

         22  TIL, which assists organized tenant associations and

         23  City-owned buildings to purchase and manage

         24  low-income co-ops.

         25                 Council Member Mark-Viverito has been
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          2  briefed and indicated her approval of both of these

          3  items.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

          5                 Seeing nobody else wishing to testify

          6  on these items, that's all we have on our calendar

          7  for the day. We are going to couple together the

          8  items that we have heard for the purposes of voting,

          9  and lay over all the rest at the request of the

         10  individual members in whose districts the properties

         11  sit. So that makes, for the purposes of voting

         12  today, Land Use 614, 615, 620, 621 and the

         13  properties at 154 and 156 East 97th Street, which

         14  are Land Use Numbers 566 and 567, in which ever

         15  order, it doesn't matter. We will vote on them as

         16  156 East 97th Street and 154 East 97th Street. The

         17  Chair recommends an aye vote on all of these items

         18  and I'll ask the Counsel to call the roll.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair

         20  Garodnick.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Aye.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         23  Baez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Excuse me. Can I

         25  just say something before I vote?

                                                            19

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Of course.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Separate and

          4  apart from voting, if we can just take a look at the

          5  little font that we get on these calendars, you

          6  cannot read it. I'd rather have more pages that I

          7  can read, as opposed to these pages that you can't.

          8  It's just extremely small.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: I think that

         10  point is well taken. We've got a very small type of

         11  some of these items.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: All right, thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: I vote aye.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you for

         17  that.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         19  Gonzalez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Aye.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         22  Dickens.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Aye.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         25  Ignizio.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Aye.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

          4  five in the affirmative, none in the negative and no

          5  abstentions, the aforementioned items are approved

          6  and referred to the full Committee.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you,

          8  everybody. And with that, the Subcommittee is

          9  adjourned.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 1:40 p.m.)
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